
1 
 

NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING  

 April 11, 2024                    6:00 PM       Auditorium of the High School 
 

AGENDA 
 
1.  Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Approval of Agenda 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to 
Education Law, approves the agenda of April 11, 2024. 
 
Motion for approval by _______, seconded by _______, all in favor ____-____. 
 
2.  Presentations: 

• Student Presentation – Leavenworth Middle School Student 
• Combined Sports – Marc Blankenberg 
• Superintendent Update – Michael Pullen 

 
3.  Reports and Correspondence: 

• Board of Education Building Liaisons 
 Elementary School –John Boogaard 
 Middle School – Shelly Cahoon 
 High School – Linda Eygnor 
 Cougar Ops – Tina Reed 

• Four County Board of Directors – Linda Eygnor 
• Four County Legislative Committee – Linda Eygnor 
• Handbook Committee – Lucinda Collier, Jasen Sloan, Paul Statskey 
• Audit Committee –John Boogaard, Shelly Cahoon, Paul Statskey 
• District Safety Committee – John Boogaard 
• Personnel & Negotiations Committee – Tina Reed, John Boogaard, Lucinda Collier 
• Policy Committee – Paul Statskey, Shelly Cahoon, Tina Reed 

 First Reading: The following policies are being submitted for a first reading. 
 

1000 By Laws  
1334 Duties of the External (Independent) Auditor Revised 
1334.1 Appointment and Duties of the Claims Auditor Revised 
5000 Non-Instructional/Business Operations  
5120 School District Budget Hearing Revised 
5260 Vending Machines Revised 
5311 Safeguarding and Use of District Credit Cards Revised 
6000 Personnel  
6190 Workplace Violence Prevention Policy Statement New 

 
 The following policies are being submitted as reviewed. 

5000 Non-Instructional/Business Operations  
5313 Reimbursement for Meals/Refreshments Reviewed 
5413 Procurement:  Uniform Grant Guidance for Federal Awards Reviewed 
5510 Accounting of Funds Reviewed 
5511 Maintenance of Fund Balance Reviewed 
5512 Reserve Funds Reviewed 
5620 Fixed Asset Inventories, Accounting and Tracking Reviewed 



2 
 

5630 Facilities:  Inspection, Operation and Maintenance Reviewed 
5631 Hazardous Waste and Handling of Toxic Substances By Employees Reviewed 

 

 
4.  Public Access to the Board: 

This time is provided for residents of the District to address the Board of Education.  Persons wishing to 
 speak must complete the sign in sheet and be recognized by the President. The speaker will be allowed three 
 minutes to address the Board of Education. 

 
5.  Consent Agenda: 

A motion for approval of items as listed under the CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS is made by _______, and seconded 
by_______ any discussion- All in favor ___-___. 
 
a. Board of Education Meeting Minutes  

RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the meeting minutes of March 28, 2024. 
 

b. Recommendations from CSE and CPSE 
RESOLUTION  

 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
 pursuant to Education Law, approves the recommendations for the Committee on Special Education dated 
 January 9, 17, 29, 31, February 6, and 7, 2024; and instructs the Superintendent to implement the 
 recommendations on behalf of the following individuals identified by student number: 
 

12561 14325 12711 12354 13292 14668 13083 
   

 
c. Substitute Teachers and Substitute Service Personnel  

 RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the individuals named on the substitute lists, which are on file with 
the District Clerk.  
 

d. 2024-2025 Board of Education Meeting Calendar  
 RESOLUTION 

Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law adopts the 2024-2025 Board of Education Meeting Calendar. 
 

e. Participation in Cooperative Bid- WFL BOCES – Various Commodities and/or Services 
 WHEREAS, The Board of Education, North Rose – Wolcott Central School District of New York State desires 
to participate in a Cooperative Bidding Program conducted by The Board of Cooperative Educational Services of 
Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties from year to year or, until this Resolution is rescinded, for the purchase 
of Various Commodities and/or Services.  And… 
 
                WHEREAS, The Board of Education, North Rose – Wolcott Central School District of New York State is 
desirous of participating with The Board of Cooperative Educational Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates 
Counties in the joint bid of the commodities and/or services mentioned below as authorized by General Municipal 
Law, Section 119-o…  And… 
 
                WHEREAS, The Board of Education, North Rose – Wolcott Central School District of New York State has 
appointed The Board of Cooperative Educational Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties as 
representative to assume the responsibility for drafting of specifications, advertising for bids, accepting and 
opening bids, tabulating bids, reporting the results to the Board of Education, North Rose – Wolcott Central School 
District of New York State and making recommendations thereon… 



3 
 

 
THEREFORE… 
 
                BE IT RESOLVED, That The Board of Education, North Rose – Wolcott Central School District of New York 
State and The Board of Cooperative Educational Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties hereby 
accepts the appointment of The Board of Cooperative Educational Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates 
Counties to represent it in all matters related above…  And… 
 
                BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That The Board of Education North Rose – Wolcott Central School District of 
New York State authorizes the above-mentioned Board of Cooperative Educational Services of Ontario, Seneca, 
Wayne and Yates Counties to represent it in all matters regarding the entering into contract for the purchase of the 
below-mentioned commodities and/or services…  And… 
 
                BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That The Board of Education North Rose – Wolcott Central School District of 
New York State agrees to assume its equitable share of the costs incurred as a result of the cooperative bidding…  
And… 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That The Purchasing Agent on behalf of the Board of Education, 
North Rose – Wolcott Central School District of New York State hereby is authorized to participate in cooperative 
bidding conducted by The Board of Cooperative Educational Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties 
for various commodities and/or services and if requested to furnish The Board of Cooperative Educational Services 
of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties an estimated minimum number of units that will be purchased by 
The Board of Cooperative Educational Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties.  The Board of 
Cooperative Educational Services of Ontario, Seneca, Wayne and Yates Counties is hereby authorized to award 
cooperative bids to the bidder deemed to be the lowest responsive and responsible meeting the bid specifications 
and otherwise complying with Article 5-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York relating to public 
bids and contracts. 
 

f. Personnel Items: 
1. Appoint Food Service Helper – Augustus Vanderlinde 

Rita Lopez recommends Augustus Vanderlinde to fill a Food Service Helper position. 
 

        RESOLUTION 
        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools     
                      and pursuant to Education Law approves the 52-week probationary appointment of Augustus      
                      Vanderlinde as a Food Service Helper conditional upon a criminal history record check according to   
                      Commissioners Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
 
                     Probationary Period: April 9, 2024-April 8, 2025 
               Salary: $15.25/hr.  
 

2. Correction Appoint School Counselor – Tracy Migliore 
        Nicole Sinclair recommends Tracy Migliore to fill a School Counselor position. 

 
         RESOLUTION 
         Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools         
         and pursuant to Education Law, approves the four-year probationary appointment of Tracy Migliore as   
                       a School Counselor conditional upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners     
                       Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 

 
 Certification: School Counselor, Permanent 
       Tenure Area:  School Counselor  
 Probationary Period: April 29, 2024-April 28, 2028   April 15, 2024-April 14, 2028  



4 
 

 Salary: $61,763   Step: Q 
         The expiration date is tentative and conditional only.  In order to be eligible for and considered for         
         tenure, the teacher must meet all requirements of the educational law and corresponding regulations. 
 

3. Appoint Teacher – Kristin Gardner 
Nicole Sinclair recommends Kristin Gardner to fill a Social Studies Teacher position. 

        RESOLUTION 
        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools          
        and pursuant to Education Law, approves the three year probationary appointment of Kristin Gardner   
                      as a Social Studies Teacher conditional upon a criminal history record check according to     
                      Commissioners Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 

 
 Certification: Social Studies 7-12, Permanent 
 Tenure Area:  Social Studies 
 Probationary Period: May 13, 2024-May 12, 2027 
 Salary: Step W  $71,899 

        The expiration date is tentative and conditional only.  In order to be eligible for and considered for         
       tenure, the teacher must meet all requirements of the educational law and corresponding regulations. 
 

4. Co-Curricular Appointments 
The following individual is being recommended to fill co-curricular positions.  

 
                      RESOLUTION 
                      Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and           

       pursuant to Education Law, appoints the following individual to fill co-curricular positions for the 
       2023-24 school year.  
 

Name Bldg. Title Step Year Salary 
Joe Slaski  Athletic Event Staff   Per NRWTA Contract 

 
5. Program Appointments 

The following individuals are being recommended to work in enrichment programs that are funded by    
        grants. 
 

         RESOLUTION 
         Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools               
         and pursuant to Education Law, approves the following individuals to work various enrichment    
         programs during the 2023-2024 school year conditional upon a criminal history record check    
         according to Commissioners Regulation §80-1.11 and Part 87.  
 

Staff Position $/Hr. 
Ashley Kennedy Grant Program Teacher  $35.00/hr. 

 
6. Appoint Volunteers 

RESOLUTION 
        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and    
        pursuant to Education Law approves the following individuals to work as a volunteer in the district for  
        the 2023-2024 school year. 

 
Jessica McCarthy Chalsea Humbert Frank Drock Brandi Kesel 

 
 

7. 913 Examination 



5 
 

        RESOLVED that the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District, upon the  
        recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, and pursuant to its powers under New York   
                      education Law § 913, hereby directs a civil service employee to undergo medical and/or psychiatric   
                      examination(s) and/or other tests deemed medically appropriate, by an examiner(s) selected by the   
                      District; and 
 
        BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Education directs the Superintendent of Schools to make   
                      such arrangements as are necessary to effectuate this resolution, pursuant to Education Law Section     
                      913; and 
 
        BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the findings of such examination(s) shall be reported back to the    
                      Board of Education for the evaluation of the employee’s fitness to continue employment. 
 

8. Reject Bid Award for NRWCSD High Library SED Control # 65-15-01-06-0-10-025.  
        It is the recommendation of our Architects, SEI Design Group and Construction Managers, DGA Builders 
         LLC,  to reject the sole bid received for the High School Library (Phase II) Outlay project following  
                       competitive sealed bids received on March 28, 2024 as follows; 
  
         Contractor 
                       Iverson Construction 
                       Base Bid Contract Sum $188,500 
 
          RESOLUTION 
                        Be it Resolved, the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and      
                        pursuant to Education Law, to reject the bid as follows: 
 
          Contractor                                                                   Items                                                            Amount_____ 
          Iverson Construction Corp.        High School Library Outlay Project                                  $188,500 
 
6.  Items requiring a roll call vote: 

A motion for approval of Adoption of the 2024-2025 Budget Spending Plan is made by _______, and seconded 
by______.  The following votes were cast. 

 
a) Adoption of the 2024-2025 Budget Spending Plan 

RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the proposed 2024-2025 budget spending plan in the amount of 
$35,489,766. 
 

The motion having been duly moved, the resolution was acted upon by the Board of Education and there were   - 
____ - votes in favor of the resolution and - _____ - votes against the resolution as follows: 
 

Lucinda Collier 
Tina Reed 
John Boogaard 
Shelly Cahoon 
Linda Eygnor 
Jasen Sloan 
Paul Statskey 

Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 

_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
______ yes         ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
______ yes         ______ no 

 
 
 

A motion for approval of Real Property Tax Report Card is made by _______, and seconded by______.  The following 



6 
 

votes were cast. 
 
b) Approval of Real Property Tax Report Card 

RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District’s Real Property Tax 
Report Card for the 2024-2025 tax year. 

 
Lucinda Collier 
Tina Reed 
John Boogaard 
Shelly Cahoon 
Linda Eygnor 
Jasen Sloan 
Paul Statskey 

Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 

_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
______ yes         ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
______ yes         ______ no 

 
c) Approve and Authorize Settlement Agreement 
A motion for approval of the Settlement Agreement is made by _______, and seconded by______.  The following votes 
were cast. 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM ASSERTED AGAINST 
THE NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) BY THE UTICA MUTUAL 
INSURANCE COMPANY, GRAPHIC ARTS MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY, AND UTICA NATIONAL 
INSURANCE GROUP, THEIR AFFILIATES AND PREDECESSORS AND SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 
(“UTICA MUTUAL”) IN AN ACTION CAPTIONED UTICA MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY, et al. v. NORTH 
ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT”, BEARING INDEX NO. CV090336 (“DECLARATORY 
JUDGMENT ACTION”), IN WHICH UTICA MUTUAL SEEKS A JUDGMENT AGAINST THE DISTRICT 
DECREEING THAT IT HAS NO OBLIGATION TO PROVIDE THE DISTRICT WITH A DEFENSE OR 
INDEMNIFICATION RELATIVE TO CLAIMS ASSERTED AGAINST THE DISTRICT IN AN ACTION 
CAPTIONED AS, LINDA MAE LOHSE v. NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, et al., IN 
THE NEW YORK STATE SUPREME COURT, WAYNE COUNTY, BEARING INDEX NO. CV085952 
(“UNDERLYING ACTION”), PURSUANT TO THE TERM OF A PROPOSED SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 
ATTACHED TO THIS RESOLUTION (“PROPOSED SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT”).  

WHEREAS, a claim was filed against the District in the Underlying Action alleging that the District is liable 
to the Plaintiff in in that action relative to certain alleged acts and omissions that occurred approximately 50 years 
ago, and the District requested that Utica Mutual to provide it with a defense and indemnification relative to the 
claims asserted in the Underlying Action; and  

WHEREAS, Utica Mutual has, to date, provided the District with a defense regarding the claims asserted in 
the Underlying Action and paid the costs of that defense, but has asserted that a diligent search of its records and 
files has failed to reveal that Utica Mutual or its predecessors in interest agreed to provide the District with 
insurance coverage relative to such claims during the times alleged in the Underlying Action and, therefore, it does 
not believe that it has an obligation to provide the District with a defense or indemnification relative to the claims 
asserted in the Underlying Action; and 

WHEREAS, the District retained experts to conduct a forensic search relative to its insurance coverage 
during the times referenced in the Underlying Action and has diligently searched its records and files and neither 
the forensic search nor the search of the District has located any record concerning the District’s insurance 
coverage during the times referenced in the Underlying Action and has been unable to locate any document 
demonstrating that Utica Mutual has an obligation to provide the District with a defense and/or indemnification 
concerning the claims asserted in the Underlying Action; and  

WHEREAS, based on for foregoing, Utica Mutual commenced the Declaratory Judgment Action, seeking a 
Declaratory Judgment against the District, decreeing that Utica Mutual has and had no obligation to provide the 
District with a defense or indemnification relative to the claims asserted in the Underlying Action; and 



7 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Proposed Settlement Agreement, Utica Mutual will forego any 
claim it may possess to recover the cost of the District’s defense in the Underlying Action to date and the District 
will agree that Utica Mutual has no obligation to pay future costs of the District’s defense or to provide the District 
with indemnification relative to the Underlying Action; and  

WHEREAS, based on the foregoing and advice of its counsel and its administrators, the Board has 
determined that a settlement of the Declaratory Judgment Action under the terms stated in the attached Settlement 
Agreement are in the District’s best interests; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT 
CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT that it hereby authorizes and approves the terms stated in the Proposed Settlement 
Agreement and it authorizes and directs its Superintendent of Schools to execute said Settlement Agreement and 
take such further and additional action as may be necessary to effectuate the above-referenced settlement; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution takes effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 

The Motion having been duly seconded by ______________________, it was adopted and the following votes were cast: 

Lucinda Collier 
Tina Reed 
John Boogaard 
Shelly Cahoon 
Linda Eygnor 
Jasen Sloan 
Paul Statskey 

Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 

_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
______ yes         ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
______ yes         ______ no 

 
Board Member Requests/Comments/Discussion: 

 
Good News: 
 
Informational Items: 

• Claims Auditor Reports 
• Four County 
• BOCES Candidate Information 

 
Motion for Adjournment: 
       There being no further business or discussion, a motion is requested adjourn the regular meeting. 
 
Motion for approval by ______, seconded by ______, with motion approved ____-____.  Time adjourned: ___:___ p.m. 
 

































































 

104 
 

NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING  

March 28, 2024                 6:00 PM                  Auditorium of High School 
PRESENT: 
BOE Members: Lucinda Collier, Tina Reed, John Boogaard, Linda Eygnor [via video-conferencing, Jasen Sloan 
Absent: Shelly Cahoon, Paul Statskey 
Superintendent:  Michael Pullen 
Pro-Tem District Clerk: Melanie Geil 
 
Approximately 4 students, staff and guests  
 
1.  Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 

Vice-President, Tina Reed called the meeting to order at 6:00p.m.  
 
Approval of Agenda: 

       Motion for approval was made by John Boogaard and seconded by Jasen Sloan with the motion approve 5-0. 
       
       Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and      
       pursuant to Education Law, approves the agenda of March 28, 2024.  
 
2.  Presentations: 

• Budget Presentation – Gary Barno 
 Mr. Barno presented and answered questions regarding Part 2 – Instruction and 

Community Service 
 
3.  Public Access to the Board: 

• No on addressed the Board of Education 
 

4.  Consent Agenda: 
A motion for approval of the following items as listed under the CONSENT AGENDA is made by Lucinda Collier and 
seconded by Linda Eygnor with the motion approved 5-0. 
 

a. Board of Education Meeting Minutes  
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the meeting minutes of March 14, 2024. 
 

b. Recommendations from CSE and CPSE 
RESOLUTION  

 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
 pursuant to Education Law, approves the recommendations for the Committee on Special Education dated 
 January 17, February 13 and March 13, 2024; and instructs the Superintendent to implement the 
 recommendations on behalf of the following individuals identified by student number: 
 

13652 14687 12963        
IEP Amendments:  
14367          

 
c. Treasurer Report 

RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the Treasurer Report for January 2024.  



 

105 
 

d. Award Bid for Surplus Equipment 
  It is the recommendation to award the NRWCSD Surplus Equipment Bid to the following Auction 
 International bidders:  
 
 RESOLUTION 
  Be it Resolved, the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools 
  and pursuant to Education Law, authorizes awarding a bid to the bidder deemed to be the highest bidder. 
 

Items Bidder Amount 

2001 New Holland TC-29D Backhoe Loader Tractor with Attachments James Putvin 11,600.00 

Hobart D340CommercialMixer Vincent Puleo 1,925.00 

Tom Cat 2500Walk Behind Floor Scrubber Rafael Pumarol 165.00 

Tornado2500B Walk Behind Floor Scrubber Rafael Pumarol 170.00 

Beverage-Air Stainless Steel MilkCoole James Capone 87.50 

Southbend Marathoner Stainless Steel Stacked Ovens Manuel Perez 500.00 

Hatco Food Warmer Vincent Puleo 62.50 

Globe GC-10Meat Slicer Charles Kammar 105.00 

Hobart Meat Slicer Galvin Beebee 105.00 

Univex Buffalo Chopper Brian Garman 720.00 

Hobart Buffalo Chopper Richard Tandy 710.00 

(3) Bulk Stainless-Steel Sugar and Flour Bins Vincent Puleo 230.00 

Hobart Meat Slicer Brent Phillips 165.00 

Magna Twin 3000 Wide Area Vacuum George Sarris  110.00 

Globe GFP500 Salad Slicer Brian Garman 210.00 

Plastic Cambro Service Bar Christina Glaster 77.50 

Plastic Service Bar with (150) Cafeteria Serving Trays Chad Gilfus 210.00 

Norlake Stainless Steel Milk Cooler Pierre Cama 67.50 

Hobart D330 Mixer Adam Parry 1,375.00 

Globe Salad Slicer Machine Adam Parry 195.00 

         Total Auction Amount     $ 18, 790.00 
e. Amendment to 2023-2024 Budget: 

 RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approve the budget amendment in the amount of $18,790.00 from Auction 
International Bid Award for Surplus Equipment and amend the 2023-2024 budget by an increase of 
$18,790.00 to the District Equipment code A-2110-200-05-0000. 

 
f. Personnel Items: 

1. Letter of Resignation – Ryan Haskins 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation from Ryan Haskins as Special Education Teacher, 



 

106 
 

effective July 1, 2024. 
 

2. Letter of Resignation – Adam Hawley 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation from Adam Hawley Teacher and all other positions 
held within the District, effective April 12, 2024. 
 

3. Appoint Sr. Clerk Typist – Emily Merry 
 RESOLUTION 

        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools    
        and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 26- week probationary appointment of Emily Merry  
        as a Senior Clerk Typist, conditional upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners   
                      Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
 
        Probationary Period:  April 22, 2024-October 21, 2024 
                      Salary:  $22.00/hr. 
 

4. Appoint Bus Driver – William Pinkerton 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the 52 week probationary appointment of William Pinkerton as 
Bus Driver, conditional upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners Regulation 
§80-1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
 

          Probationary Period: March 8, 2024-January 11, 2025 
         Salary: $22.00/hr. 
 

5. Appoint Bus Driver-Robert Hicks 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the 52-week probationary appointment of Robert Hicks as a 
School Bus Driver conditional upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners 
Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
 

Probationary Period: April 9, 2024-April 8, 2025 
Salary: $25.70/hr. 

 
6. Appoint Art Teacher – Margaret Macaluso 

         RESOLUTION 
         Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools          
         and pursuant to Education Law, approves the four year probationary appointment of Margaret     
                       Macaluso as an Art Teacher conditional upon a criminal history record check according to   
                       Commissioners Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 

 
 Certification: Visual Arts - Initial 
 Tenure Area: Art 
 Probationary Period: March 14, 2024-March 13, 2028 
 Salary: Step A $48,514  

         The expiration date is tentative and conditional only.  In order to be eligible for and considered for         
        tenure, the teacher must meet all requirements of the educational law and corresponding regulations.  
 



 

107 
 

7. Appoint School Counselor – Tracy Migliore 
         RESOLUTION 
         Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools         
         and pursuant to Education Law, approves the four-year probationary appointment of Tracy Migliore as   
                       a School Counselor conditional upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners     
                       Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 

 
 Certification: School Counselor, Permanent 
       Tenure Area:  School Counselor  
 Probationary Period: April 29, 2024-April 28, 2028 
 Salary: $61,763   Step: Q 

         The expiration date is tentative and conditional only.  In order to be eligible for and considered for         
         tenure, the teacher must meet all requirements of the educational law and corresponding regulations. 
 

8. Approve Terms & Conditions of Employment 
        RESOLUTION  

Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the Terms and Conditions of Employment for employees deemed 
Confidential for the 2024-2025 school year.  The contracts are on file with the District Clerk. 
 

        RESOLUTION  
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and    
pursuant to Education Law approves the Terms and Conditions of Employment for the Senior  
Maintenance Mechanic for the 2024-2025 school year.  The contract is on file with the District Clerk. 
 

        RESOLUTION  
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and    
pursuant to Education Law approves the Terms and Conditions of Employment for the Senior  
Automotive Mechanic for the 2024-2025 school year.  The contract is on file with the District Clerk. 
 

        RESOLUTION  
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and    
pursuant to Education Law approves the Terms and Conditions of Employment for the  
Automotive Mechanic for the 2024-2025 school year.  The contract is on file with the District Clerk. 
 

        RESOLUTION  
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the Terms and Conditions of Employment for Child and Youth 
SPOA Coordinator for the period of July 1, 2024-June 30, 2025.  The contract is on file with the District 
Clerk. 
 

        RESOLUTION  
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the Terms and Conditions of Employment for Director of Human 
Resources for the period of July 1, 2024-June 30, 2025.  The contract is on file with the District Clerk. 
 

                      RESOLUTION  
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and   
pursuant to Education Law approves the Terms and Conditions of Employment for the Assistant  
Superintendent for Instruction and School Improvement for the period of July 1, 2024-June 30, 2025.   
The contract is on file with the District Clerk. 
 



 

108 
 

9. Appoint Acting Principal of Record – Karen Haak 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools appoints Karen Haak, Assistant Principal, as acting Principal of record for North Rose-Wolcott 
Elementary School effective February 12, 2024-June 30, 2024. Mrs. Haak will continue to accrue 
seniority in the Assistant Principal Tenure Area during this time.  A Memorandum of Understanding is 
on file with the District Clerk. 
 

10. Appoint Acting Assistant Principal – Benjamin Stopka 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools appoints Benjamin Stopka, Reading Teacher, as acting  Assistant Principal  for North Rose 
Wolcott Elementary School effective March 4, 2024-June 30, 2024.  Mr. Stopka will continue to accrue 
seniority in the Reading Teacher Tenure Area during this time.  A Memorandum of Understanding is on 
file with the District Clerk. 
 

11. North Rose - Wolcott Administrators' Association Contract Ratification 
RESOLUTION  
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, 
hereby ratifies and approves Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Superintendent of Schools 
of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District and the North Rose–Wolcott Administrators' 
Association for the period covering July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2027.  The Collective Bargaining 
Agreement is on file with the District Clerk.     
 

12. Coaching and Athletic Department Appointments 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the following coaching appointment for the 2023-24 school year, 
conditional upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners Regulation §80-1.11 and 
Part 87, and successful completion of all required First Aid/CPR and Child Abuse courses. 
 

Position  Name Step Years Salary 
Softball Coach Modified Patricia Jackson 4 25 $4,089 

  
13. Co-Curricular Appointments 

                      RESOLUTION 
                      Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and           

       pursuant to Education Law, appoints the following individual to fill co-curricular positions for the 
       2023-24 school year.  
 

Name Bldg. Title Step Year Salary 
Amber Landry HS Class Advisor - 2025 2 5 $1,153 

 
14. Correction Co-Curricular Appointment from August 24, 2023 

                      RESOLUTION 
                      Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and           

       pursuant to Education Law, appoints the following individual to fill co-curricular positions for the 
       2023-24 school year.  
 

Name Bldg. Title Step Year Salary 
Brittany Wright HS Class Advisor - 2025 1 2  $644      $854 

 



 

109 
 

15. Appoint Volunteers 
RESOLUTION 

        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and    
        pursuant to Education Law approves the following individuals to work as a volunteer in the district for  
        the 2023-2024 school year. 

 
Kara Goulette Haley Miller Tonja Ticconi Tracy VanFleet 
Amanda Klahn Patricia Gallup Chelsey Richardson Casey Wendt 
Jennifer Rose    
 

5.  Policies  
A motion for approval of the following items as listed under Policies is made by Jasen Sloan and seconded by 
Lucinda Collier with the motion approved 5-0. 
 

a) Approval of Policies 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the following new and/or revised policies: 

 
5000 Non-Instructional/Business Operations  
5312 District-Owned Cell Phones Assigned to Individual Employees Delete 

 
 The following policies are being submitted as reviewed. 

1000 By Laws  
1336 Duties of the School Attorney Reviewed 
5000 Non-Instructional/Business Operations  
5110 Budget Planning and Development Reviewed 
5310 Expenditures of School District Funds Reviewed 

 
6.  Items requiring a roll call vote: 
A motion for approval of item a is made by Lucinda Collier and seconded by Linda Eygnor with the following votes 
being cast: 
 

a. SEQRA FOR ESSER 2 Electronic Message Boards 
WHEREAS, the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District (the "District"), is a local agency pursuant to the 

New York State Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQRA”), ECL Section 8-0101, et seq., and implementing 
regulations, 6 NYCRR Part 617 (the “Regulations”), and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has considered undertaking the construction work (the Project) consisting of the 

installation of an exterior electronic message boards serving each of the North Rose Elementary School, the Middle 
School, and the High School and, 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed elements of the Project are routine activities of an educational institution for the 
purpose of maintenance or repair of existing structures and facilities; replacement, rehabilitation or reconstruction 
of a structure or facility, in kind; and/or routine activities of educational institutions including expansion of 
existing facilities by less than 10,000 square feet of gross floor area; and 

  
WHEREAS, the District reviewed the scope of the Project and has been advised that the Project constitutes 

a Type II Action pursuant Part 617.5(c)(10) of the Regulations, and as such is not subject to review under SEQRA; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Education of the District has reviewed the criteria contained in Part 617.5(c)(10) 



 

110 
 

of the Regulations, and  
 

 BE IT RESOLVED by this Board of Education as follows: 
 
 Section 1.   The District hereby determines that the Project is a Type II Action as such term is defined in the 
Regulations. 
 
 Section 2.      This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
The motion having been duly moved, the resolution was acted upon by the Board of Education and there were  - 5 - 
votes in favor of the resolution and -0 - votes against the resolution as follows: 
 

Lucinda Collier 
Tina Reed 
John Boogaard 
Shelly Cahoon 
Linda Eygnor 
Jasen Sloan 
Paul Statskey 

Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 

___X__ yes           ______ no 
___X__ yes           ______ no 
___X__ yes           ______ no 
absent 
___X__ yes           ______ no 
___X__ yes           ______ no 
absent 

 
7.  Correction Items requiring a roll call vote: 
A motion for approval of item a is made by Jasen Sloan and seconded by John Boogaard with the following votes 
being cast: 

 
a) Correction Language Approval for May 21, 2024 Budget Vote 

 The Board is required to formally approve the following propositions that will be considered by voters at 
 the May 21, 2024 Budget Vote and Election of Board Members: 
 
 RESOLUTION: 

Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the following four (4) propositions as they will be presented to the 
voters on May 21, 2024. 
 

 Proposition No. 1: 2024-25 Budget  
 Shall the budget for the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District (the “District”) for the fiscal year 
 commencing July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025, as presented by the Board of Education, in the amount 
 of $xxxxxx be approved and adopted, the required funds be appropriated and the necessary real property 
 taxes required be raised by a tax on the taxable property in the District to be levied and collected as 
 required by law? 

 
 Proposition No. 2: Transportation Purchases and Expenditures 
 Shall the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District, be authorized to purchase 
 the following motor vehicles for use in student transportation: four (4) 64-passenger school buses and one 
 (1) 30-passenger handicapped bus at an aggregate cost of $810,026, less any trade in value, with such sum 
 to be paid from an expenditure of $657,026 from the District’s existing Capital Reserve Fund (known as the 
 “Bus Purchase Capital Reserve Fund”), established by the voters of the District in May 2023; and that the 
 District shall be authorized to enter into one or more purchase contracts on terms satisfactory to the Board 
 of Education, with respect to the vehicles hereby authorized to be acquired? 
 

If necessary, due to space constraints on the voting ballot, said proposition may be presented in 
substantially the following abbreviated form: 

 



 

111 
 

 Shall the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District be authorized to purchase 
 four (4) 64-passenger school buses and one (1) 30-passenger handicapped bus at an aggregate cost of 
 $810,026, less any trade in value, with such sum to be paid from an expenditure of $657,026 from the 
 District’s existing Capital Reserve Fund, established by the voters in May 2023 and the District further 
 authorized to enter into one or more purchase contracts on terms satisfactory to the Board of Education, 
 with respect to the vehicles hereby authorized to be acquired? 
 
 Proposition No. 3:  Annual Appropriations For Wolcott Public Library and Rose Free Library  
 Shall the annual sum collected by the North Rose – Wolcott Central School District as required by New York 
 State Education and Municipal laws for the 2024-25 operating budgets of the Wolcott Public Library and 
 the Rose Free Library, as determined by both Library Boards of Trustees, be increased by $13,000.00 to the 
 total sum of $236,100.00 annually, to be allocated in the amounts of $135,000 to the Wolcott Public Library 
 and  $101,000 $101,100.00 to the Rose Free Library? 
 
 Proposition No. 4: Authorization to Fund Repair Reserve 
 Shall the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District be authorized and directed 
 to transfer Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand dollars ($250,000.00) from the Liability Reserve established 
 by the District June 30, 2003, to the Repair Reserve; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that an initial deposit not exceeding Twenty-five thousand dollars 
 ($25,000.00) shall be transferred from the 2023-24 unreserved, unappropriated general fund balance to 
 the Repair Reserve Fund; and   

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District 
 and/or its designee(s) is hereby authorized to take any and all action necessary to effectuate the funding of 
 the Repair Reserve, as described herein. 
 

If necessary, due to space constraints on the voting ballot, said proposition may be presented in 
substantially the following abbreviated form: 

   
 Shall the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District be authorized and directed 
 to transfer Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand dollars ($250,000.00) from the Liability Reserve established 
 by the District June 30, 2003, to the Repair Reserve; and that an initial deposit not exceeding Twenty-five 
 thousand dollars ($25,000.00) shall be transferred from the 2023-24 unreserved, unappropriated general 
 fund balance to the Repair Reserve Fund? 

 
The motion having been duly moved, the resolution was acted upon by the Board of Education and there were  - 5 - 
votes in favor of the resolution and -0 - votes against the resolution as follows: 
 

Lucinda Collier 
Tina Reed 
John Boogaard 
Shelly Cahoon 
Linda Eygnor 
Jasen Sloan 
Paul Statskey 

Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 

___X__ yes           ______ no 
___X__ yes           ______ no 
___X__ yes           ______ no 
absent 
___X__ yes           ______ no 
___X__ yes           ______ no 
absent 

 
A motion for approval of item b is made by Lucinda Collier and seconded by Jasen Sloan with the following votes 
being cast: 
 

b) Correction Notice of Public Hearing and Annual School District Election 
RESOLUTION 



 

112 
 

Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and  
pursuant to Education Law, approves the following: 
 
Section 1:     That pursuant to §2004(1) of the Education Law, as amended, the annual school district 
budget vote and election of the North Rose - Wolcott Central School District, shall be conducted in the 
North Rose-Wolcott High School, 11631 Salter-Colvin Rd., Wolcott, NY on Tuesday, May 21, 2024, for the 
purpose of voting by paper ballot upon the propositions hereinafter set forth.  Polls for the purpose of 
voting shall be kept open between the hours of 12:00 noon and 8:00 PM local time. 

Section 2:     That the Public Hearing on the proposed school budget will occur Thursday, May 9, 2024 at 
6:00 PM in the High School Auditorium in said school district. 
 
Section 3:   That the notice of said public hearing and annual school election, including the propositions to 
be voted upon, shall be in substantially the following form: 
 

LEGAL NOTICE 
NOTICE OF ANNUAL SCHOOL DISTRICT ELECTION & 

PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED BUDGET 
North Rose - Wolcott Central School District 

Wolcott, New York 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the Board of Education of North Rose - Wolcott Central School District, Wayne 
County, New York that the annual election of the school district shall occur on the 21st day of May, 2024, in the 
North Rose - Wolcott High School, 11631 Salter-Colvin Rd., Wolcott, New York from 12:00 noon until 8:00 PM for 
the purpose of voting, by paper ballot upon the propositions hereinafter as follows: 
 
Proposition No. 1: 2024-25 Budget  
Shall the budget for the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District (the “District”) for the fiscal year commencing 
July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025, as presented by the Board of Education, in the amount of $xxxxxx be 
approved and adopted, the required funds be appropriated and the necessary real property taxes required be 
raised by a tax on the taxable property in the District to be levied and collected as required by law? 

 
Proposition No. 2: Transportation Purchases and Expenditures 
Shall the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District, be authorized to purchase the 
following motor vehicles for use in student transportation: four (4) 64-passenger school buses and one (1) 30-
passenger handicapped bus at an aggregate cost of $810,026, less any trade in value, with such sum to be paid from 
an expenditure of $657,026 from the District’s existing Capital Reserve Fund (known as the “Bus Purchase Capital 
Reserve Fund”), established by the voters of the District in May 2023; and that the District shall be authorized to 
enter into one or more purchase contracts on terms satisfactory to the Board of Education, with respect to the 
vehicles hereby authorized to be acquired? 
 

If necessary, due to space constraints on the voting ballot, said proposition may be presented in 
substantially the following abbreviated form: 

 
Shall the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District be authorized to purchase four (4) 
64-passenger school buses and one (1) 30-passenger handicapped bus at an aggregate cost of $810,026, less any 
trade in value, with such sum to be paid from an expenditure of $657,026 from the District’s existing Capital 
Reserve Fund, established by the voters in May 2023 and the District further authorized to enter into one or more 
purchase contracts on terms satisfactory to the Board of Education, with respect to the vehicles hereby authorized 
to be acquired? 
 
Proposition No. 3:  Annual Appropriations For Wolcott Public Library and Rose Free Library  
Shall the annual sum collected by the North Rose – Wolcott Central School District as required by New York State 



 

113 
 

Education and Municipal laws for the 2024-25 operating budgets of the Wolcott Public Library and the Rose Free 
Library, as determined by both Library Boards of Trustees, be increased by $13,000.00 to the total sum of 
$236,100.00 annually, to be allocated in the amounts of $135,000 to the Wolcott Public Library and $101,000.00 
$101,100.00 to the Rose Free Library? 
 
Proposition No. 4: Authorization to Fund Repair Reserve 
Shall the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District be authorized and directed to 
transfer Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand dollars ($250,000.00) from the Liability Reserve established by the 
District June 30, 2003, to the Repair Reserve; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that an initial deposit not exceeding Twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) shall 
be transferred from the 2023-24 unreserved, unappropriated general fund balance to the Repair Reserve Fund; 
and   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District and/or 
its designee(s) is hereby authorized to take any and all action necessary to effectuate the funding of the Repair 
Reserve, as described herein. 
 

If necessary, due to space constraints on the voting ballot, said proposition may be presented in 
substantially the following abbreviated form: 

   
Shall the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District be authorized and directed to 
transfer Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand dollars ($250,000.00) from the Liability Reserve established by the 
District June 30, 2003, to the Repair Reserve; and that an initial deposit not exceeding Twenty-five thousand 
dollars ($25,000.00) shall be transferred from the 2023-24 unreserved, unappropriated general fund balance to 
the Repair Reserve Fund? 
 
 FURTHER NOTICE IS GIVEN that a copy of the statement of the estimated monies which will be required 
during the 2024-25 fiscal year for school purposes, specifying the purposes and the amount of each and a copy of 
the report of the amount of total assessed value of the final assessment roll(s) used in the budgetary process that is 
exempt from taxation will be available, upon request, to taxpayers in this District during the hours of 8:00 AM to 
4:00 PM from May 7, 2024 to May 21, 2024, exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, at each schoolhouse in 
the District, the Rose Free Library, the Wolcott Public Library, and on the District website: www.nrwcs.org.    
 

ELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 NOTICE IS ALSO GIVEN that petitions nominating candidates for the office of Board of Education member 
must be filed with the District Clerk no later than 5:00 PM local time, on April 22, 2024.  Vacancies for school board 
members will occur as follows:  

 
Two (2) Board Members will be elected at that time: 

• One (1) term of five (5) years beginning – July 1, 2024-June 30, 2029 to succeed the following incumbent:  
Jasen Sloan 

• One (1) term of five (5) years beginning – July 1, 2024-June 30, 2029 to succeed the following incumbent:  
Paul Statskey 

 
 Petitions to nominate a candidate for member of the Board of Education may be secured from the District 
Clerk at the District Office, 11631 Salter-Colvin Road, Wolcott, New York 14590, Monday through Friday, exclusive 
of legal holidays, between the hours of 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM.  Each petition shall be signed by at least twenty-five 
(25) qualified voters of the district, and state the name and residence address of each candidate and the name and 
residence address of each signer.   

 
 FURTHER NOTICE IS GIVEN that the election of members of the Board of Education is at large.  The 

http://www.nrwcs.org/


 

114 
 

candidate receiving the greatest number of votes cast will be elected. 
   

 NOTICE IS ALSO GIVEN that applications for absentee ballots may be obtained from the District Clerk 
between 8:00 AM and 4:00 PM Monday - Friday, excluding holidays.  Applications must be received at least seven 
(7) days before the election if the ballot is to be mailed to the voter, or the day before the election, if the ballot is to 
be delivered personally to the voter.  The District Clerk must receive absentee ballots no later than 5:00 PM local 
time on Tuesday, May 21, 2024.  A list of all persons to whom absentee ballots have been issued will be available 
for public inspection during regular business hours in the Office of the District Clerk on and after May 15, 2024 
until May 20, 2024, except on Sundays, and such list will also be posted at the polling place or places at the 
election of members of the board of education. 
 
 NOTICE IS ALSO GIVEN, that pursuant to Section 2018-f of the Education Law, that applications for early 
mail ballots may be obtained at the Office of the District Clerk of the School District, during all days in which the 
School District is in session. Completed applications must be received by the District Clerk no earlier than April 22, 
2024 and at least seven (7) days before the election if the ballot is to be mailed to the voter, or the day before the 
election, if the ballot is to be delivered personally to the voter.  The District Clerk must receive absentee ballots no 
later than 5:00 PM local time on Tuesday, May 21, 2024.  A list of all persons to whom early ballots have been 
issued will be available for public inspection in the Office of the District Clerk during office hours on and after May 
15, 2024 until May 20, 2024, except on Sundays, and such list will also be posted at the polling place or places at 
the election of members of the board of education. A challenge to an early voting ballot may not be made on the 
basis that the voter should have applied for an absentee ballot. 
 
 NOTICE IS ALSO GIVEN that military voters who are qualified voters of the School District may apply for a 
military ballot by requesting an application from the District Clerk at (315) 594-2020 or tstjohn@nrwcs.org. For a 
military voter to be issued a military ballot, the District Clerk must have received a valid ballot application no later 
than 5:00 PM on April 22, 2024. In a request for a military ballot application or ballot, the military voter may 
indicate their preference for receiving the application or ballot by mail, facsimile transmission or electronic mail. 

 
Section 4:      That the school District Clerk is authorized and directed to cause such notice of the public hearing and 
annual school election to be given in substantially the form herein before prescribed by publishing the same four 
(4) times within the seven (7) weeks preceding the annual school election (May 21, 2024), the first publication to 
appear at least forty-five (45) days  before the event, in the Lake Shore News and the Finger Lakes Times the official 
district newspapers, and by giving such other notice as may be deemed advisable. 

 
Dated: March , 2024 
By Order of the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District 
Wolcott, NY 14590 
Tina St. John, District Clerk 
 
First Publication: April 3, 2024, Second through Fourth Publication: Weeks of: April 14, April 28, and May 5, 2024. 
 
The motion having been duly moved, the resolution was acted upon by the Board of Education and there were  - 5 - 
votes in favor of the resolution and -0 - votes against the resolution as follows: 
 

Lucinda Collier 
Tina Reed 
John Boogaard 
Shelly Cahoon 
Linda Eygnor 
Jasen Sloan 
Paul Statskey 

Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 

___X__ yes           ______ no 
___X__ yes           ______ no 
___X__ yes           ______ no 
absent 
___X__ yes           ______ no 
___X__ yes           ______ no 
absent 



 

115 
 

 
 
Board Member Requests/Comments/Discussion: 

• There was no discussion 
 

Good News: 
• Leavenworth Middle School Musical 

 
Adjournment: 
 
A motion was requested to adjourn the regular meeting. 
 
Motion for approval was made by John Boogaard and seconded by Linda Eygnor with motion approved 5-0.   
 
Time adjourned 6:20p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________ 
Melanie Geil, Pro-Tem Clerk of the Board of Education 
 



    

  

North Rose - Wolcott Central School District 
Board of Education Meeting Calendar 

2024-2025 
 

Meetings held at 6:00 PM in the High School unless otherwise announced 
 
 July 11, 2024 - Re-Organization & Regular meeting 

 August 8, 2024 

 August 22, 2024 

 September 12, 2024 

 September 26, 2024 

 October 10, 2024 

 October 24, 2024 

 November 14, 2024 

 December 12, 2024 

 January 9, 2025 

 January 23, 2025 

 February 13, 2025 

 February 27, 2025 

 March 13, 2025 

 March 27, 2025 

 April 10, 2025 

 April TBD – BOCES Vote (Wednesday) 

 May 8, 2025  

 May 20, 2025 - Budget Vote & Election of Board Members 

 May 22, 2025 - tentative 

 June 12, 2025 

 June 26, 2025 - tentative 

  

 Note: Meetings will held the 2nd & 4th Thursday unless otherwise noted. Additional   
             meetings will be scheduled as required. 
 

 

 

    

 

 









1) Bylaws Page 1 of 3 
 

Four County School Boards Association 
 

BYLAWS 

       
                                                                                                                                                         
ARTICLE I - NAME AND OFFICE 
 

Section 1 - Name 
This Association shall be known as the Ontario, Seneca, Yates, and Wayne Counties School Boards 
Association         
(d.b.a. - The Four County School Boards Association). 
 

Section 2 - Location 
The office shall be housed at a location designated by the Board of Directors. Here after known as “the 
Board”. 
 

ARTICLE II - PURPOSE 
 

Section 1 - Statement of Purpose 
Vision 
A respected and strong collective voice for excellence in public education 
 

Mission 
The Four County School Boards Association will provide training, advocacy positions and opportunities 
to support and advance excellence in public education and promote the achievement of all students 
through effective governance. 
 

Beliefs 
With students at the heart of our work, the Four County School Boards Association is committed to acting 
professionally, collegially and ethically. 
 

Section 2 - Revisions 
The Board may recommend revision or replacement of this statement of purpose. 
 

ARTICLE III – COOPERATIVE SERVICE 
 

This service is available to public school boards of education who participate in the WFL BOCES 
Cooperative Services. 
 

ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS 
 

Section 1 - Officers 
a. The regularly elected officers of the Association shall be the President and First Vice President. The 

Second Vice President position will be eliminated effective July 1, 2023.       
b. The Treasurer will be appointed by the Board of Directors annually.  

 

Section 2 - Qualifications 
a. Elected officers shall be serving on a member board at the time of election and throughout the term of 

office. 
b. A member of any board in good standing shall be eligible to serve as an officer. 

 

Section 3 - Term of Office 
a. The officers shall serve a one-year term from July 1st to June 30th. 
b. Each office is limited to 2 consecutive one-year terms. In extraordinary circumstances, the Board may 

elect to extend a term by one year. 
 

Section 4 - Duties of the Officers 
Duties of Officers shall be defined in board policy.  (#5 Rolls and Responsibilities of Officers) 
 

Section 5 - Vacancies 
The Board shall fill any vacancy which occurs before a term of office expires. 



1) Bylaws Page 2 of 3 
 

 
ARTICLE V - ELECTION PROCEDURES 
 

Section 1 - Appointment of Nominating Committee 
The Board shall appoint a Nominating Committee, in accordance with policy, at their first meeting of the 
fiscal year. (#7 Nominating Committee Guidelines Policy) 
 

Section 2 - Slate of Officers 
a. The Nominating Committee shall present a slate of officers in accordance with the Nominating 

Committee Guidelines Policy. (#7 Nominating Committee Guidelines Policy) 
b. Upon approval of the Board the slate shall immediately be sent to the full membership. 
 

Section 3 - Additional Nominations 
Nominations will be accepted and added to the ballot at the Board of Directors meeting that adopts the slate 
of officers held prior to election and Annual Meeting, and added to the ballot. 
 

Section 4 - Election of Officers  
The ballot and any required business to be voted on will be sent to member boards of education for vote 
and return by email to the Four County office by Board Clerks no later than 1 day prior to the Annual 
Meeting. Each member board is entitled to one vote. 

a. A quorum shall consist of 51% of the membership boards. 
 

ARTICLE VI - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 

Section 1 - Appointment 
The Board shall appoint an Executive Director who shall serve at its pleasure. 
 

Section 2 - Conditions of Employment 
The Board, upon the recommendation of the Association Officers, shall annually approve the 
remuneration and specific conditions of employment of the Executive Director and other staff members. 
Remuneration and specific conditions of employment will be established according to the terms of an 
annually negotiated contract or contract amendment as recommended by the officers to the Board of 
Directors. The contract is signed by the Wayne-Finger Lakes BOCES District Superintendent.  
 

Section 3 - Duties of the Executive Director 
The Duties and responsibilities of the Executive Director shall be defined in Association Policy. 
Duties and Responsibilities of the Executive Director are defined in the Wayne-Finger Lakes BOCES job 
description titled Executive Director of Four County School Boards Association. 
 
 

ARTICLE VII - BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Section 1 Governance of the Association 
The general governance of this Association shall be vested in the Board. 
 

Section 2 - Membership 
a. The Board of Directors shall consist of the Association officers and a representative from each 

member school board. 
b. Each member board is invited to appoint one delegate and one alternate to the Board. If a 

delegate/alternate are not named, their President and Vice President will be appointed by default. 
c. The Immediate Past President of the Four County School Boards Association, the Area 2 Director, and 

any active officer the New York State School Boards Association residing in Area 2, if such an individual 
is serving on a member board of the Association, shall serve as ex-officio members of the Board. 

d. The Chief School Officer of each member district shall receive notice of meetings and is invited to 
serve in an advisory capacity. 

 

Section 3 - Responsibility 
a. The Board shall function as the policy making body, conducting the affairs of the Association. 
b. The Board shall convene at least four times per year and additionally at the discretion of the 

President or when a request is made to the President by any member. 
c. The Board shall establish such committees as necessary to conduct the business of the Association. 

 



1) Bylaws Page 3 of 3 
 

d. The Board shall annually review the Executive Director in accordance with policy. The Board shall 
establish a process for the annual evaluation of the Executive Director at the first board meeting of 
the year. 
 

e. The Board may enter executive session upon majority approval of those in attendance. 
f. The Board shall annually select and appoint a treasurer. 

 

Section 4 – Voting Procedures 
Each member board is entitled to one vote. 

b. A quorum shall consist of 51% of the membership boards. 
 

ARTICLE VIII – MEETINGS 
 

Section 1 - General Membership Meetings 
General Membership Meetings shall be held throughout the year as determined by the Board. 
 

 Section 2 - Annual Meetings 
a. The Annual Meeting shall be held for the purpose of electing officers and conducting other business 

as deemed necessary by the Board. 
b. The Annual Meeting of the Association shall be held after School Board Elections at a time and place 

determined by the Board.   
The Annual Meeting of the Association shall be held at a time and place determined by the Board.  

 
 

Section 3 - Special Business Meetings 
Special Business Meetings of the full membership may be called by the Board, following a ten (10) day prior 
notice, for the transaction of Association business other than the election of officers. 
 

ARTICLE IX - FISCAL POLICY 
 

Section 1 - Fiscal Year 
The fiscal year shall be from July 1 through June 30. 
 

Section 2 - Depositories 
a. The Board shall designate annually the depositories and signatories for all Association funds. 
b. The Executive Director, or Board designee, shall receive all moneys and deposit same to the accounts 

of the Association. 
 

Section 3 - Annual Budget 
The Association’s Annual Budget shall be approved by the Board. 
 

Section 4 - Annual Audit 
a. Provision shall be made for annual audits of the Association’s accounts. as per Audit Committee 

Guidelines. (#31 Audit Committee Guidelines) 
b. An annual audit report shall be presented to the Board for acceptance and distributed to the 

membership. 
 

ARTICLE X – AMENDMENTS 
 

Section 1 - Proposal 
a. Amendments may be proposed by the Board or by any member board. 
b. Such proposed amendments shall be sent to the President for submission to the Board in such time 

that proper notice of such proposed changes can be included in the notice of the Annual or Special 
Meetings at which they are to be voted on. 

 

Section 2 - Notification of Membership 
Notice shall be sent to all member boards at least 30 days prior to the meeting with exception for 
extenuating circumstances, incorporating the text of the proposed amendment(s) and the recommendations 
of the Board. 
 

Section 3 - Approval 
a. The vote to approve proposed amendments is to be taken at the meeting specified in accordance with 

according to Article V Voting Procedures. 



1) Bylaws Page 4 of 3 
 

b. Such amendments shall be adopted when approved by two-thirds of the members voting. 
 

Section 4 - Bylaws Review                                                                                                                                                        
Bylaws shall be reviewed at least every five years with a committee chaired by an officer and at least 5 
members by the Policy and Bylaws Committee. 

 
Amended:  May 21, 2009 
Amended:  October 3, 2017 
Amended: May 20, 2019 
Amended: June 30, 2020 
Amended: May 26, 2022 
Amended: May 16, 2024 

Adopted:    June 19, 1975 
Amended:  May 3, 1979 
Amended:  July 11, 1986 
Amended:  July 30, 1992 
Amended:  June 16, 1998 
Amended:  June 3, 2003 
 



  

No Yes 

 

  

 

Four County SBA Membership Survey   
 

1) Do you have any suggestions on how the Association should      
celebrate 50 years of service next year? _____________________ 

____________________________________________
____________________________________________ 
 

2) What topics/speakers would you like Four County SBA to 
offer in 2024-2025? __________________________________ 
__________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________
____________________________________________ 
 

3) Would a member of your board like to sit on a committee to  
organize our 2025 Conference? _________________________ 
___________________________________________________ 
 

4) Do you have any suggestions of topics/speakers for the 2025  
Conference? ________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________
____________________________________________ 
 

5) Would your district be interested in facilitating a student led  
presentation/workshop at our 2025 Conference? ____________ 

What would you like them to present on? ___________________ 

____________________________________________
____________________________________________ 

 

6) Would a Saturday in early June work better for our Four 
County Conference, if not, which day of the week and month 
would work best for your district? _______________________ 
___________________________________________________ 

Four County SBA Official Ballot 

2024-2025 Election of Officers, Banking 
Designation, And Bank Signatories 

 

  

 

Each Four County SBA member district is allowed one 
vote per item  
 

Election of Officers                                                 

For a term of one year Starting July 1, 2024: 
 

President: Joe McNamara/Seneca Falls CSD   
 

Vice President: Carrie Resch/Wayne CSD   
 

Banking 
Annual designation of depositories for association funds 
Starting July 1, 2024:  

Reliant Community Credit Union  
 
Signatories on Bank Accounts Starting July 1, 2024: 
                             Executive Director, President,  

Vice President, and Treasurer                
 
Bylaws and Policy Changes 
Approve changes to:  Four County SBA Bylaws   

 
Please sign and return to Four County SBA before                  

May 1, 2024 ~ 4countysba@edutech.org   
 

 

School District: ___________________________________  

 
Date: ___________________________________________ 

 
Board Clerk Signature: _____________________________ 

 

Please join us at the May 16, 2024 Annual Meeting                
where the results will be announced  



Wayne-Finger Lakes Board of Cooperative Educational Services 

Candidate Information Form 
 
 

Name: Lynn Gay                 School District: Bloomfield     
 2024            
 
 

PART I:  Board Experience 
 
Thank you to the Bloomfield Board of Education for nominating me to seek reelection to the BOCES board.  My 
board experience includes past service on the Bloomfield board.  I have many years of experience on the 
BOCES board, and was privileged to serve as president in the 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22 school years.  I have 
always believed that it is important for board members to be involved beyond the local level.  Shortly after 
becoming a board member I became actively involved in the Four County School Boards Association, serving as 
legislative committee chair, 2nd vice president and president.  I am serving as Policy and Bylaws Committee 
chair this year.  I also participated in the various in-service programs offered by the New York State School 
Boards Association (NYSSBA).  I served on the NYSSBA Board of Directors, representing Area 2, for ten years.  I 
believe that my boardsmanship has been enhanced by this involvement. 
  

PART II:  Interest in BOCES Board Seat 
 
I believe that BOCES plays an important role in helping component districts conserve and use their resources 
economically for the benefit of all our students.  
 
I bring to the position a well-rounded knowledge of the issues facing public education, the time to continue to 
be an advocate for all of our students, knowledge of BOCES programs and services, and a commitment to 
work with my colleagues on the BOCES board to continue to look for innovative, cost effective ways to meet 
the needs of our component districts and the students we serve. 
 

PART III:  Additional Information 
 

 
I am excited to work with our recently appointed District Superintendent as our BOCES moves forward in 
service to the students and districts we serve. I feel privileged to have worked with so many of you over the 
past several years for the benefit of the children in the Wayne-Finger Lakes BOCES.   
 
I ask for your vote in the upcoming election.  Thank you. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Wayne-Finger Lakes Board of Cooperative Educational Services  

Candidate Information Form  
  
  

Name: Pamela Pendleton       School District: Wayne Central CSD 
  
  

PART I:  Board Experience  
  
I have served on the W-FL BOCES Board for the past 6 years. While on this Board, I’ve 
served on the Policy, Shared Decision Making, and Audit Committees, where I just 
completed my 3rd year as Chairperson. I also sit on the Upstate Institute Board. I have 
attended numerous conferences - RSA, NYSSBA, National SBA Conferences, Ferrara & 
Fiorenza and 4 County workshops as well as BOCES sponsored events to educate myself 
so I may better serve our 25 Component Districts as well as our services at BOCES. Prior to 
my term on the BOCES Board, I served 6 years on the Wayne Central BOE, was VP 2 years, 
served on Policy & Communication Committees, Capital Improvement Project 
Committee and was Board liaison for New Member training and our Board Clerk. In my 9 
years as a Board member, I’ve been a part of 4 superintendent searches.  
  

PART II:  Interest in BOCES Board Seat  

Initially I ran because I was impressed with the offerings BOCES had for ALL students and 
wanted to be part of expanding those opportunities. I wanted to see more student 
exposure to the Vocational programs and find ways to include the special education 
population in these areas. Since I’ve been on the W-FL BOCES Board I’ve seen growth in 
services – we've opened Ptech, expanded opportunities for our special education 
population, and continually look for ways to reach every student. The Vocational 
Programs we offer help many students find their passion and leave school 
career/college ready! The staff and Administration at our BOCES are student centered 
and focused on positive outcomes. As I serve on this Board, I am impressed with the 
level of support we offer our Component Districts. We offer workshops/conferences as 
well as providing districts with special student services they may contract with us (a 
fiscally sound way to provide needed services) as well as the additional supports – 
technology, crisis management team, superintendent search processes to name a few. 
BOCES is an essential piece that keeps our smaller rural districts running smoothly. The 
BOCES Board members work collaboratively and are centered on student needs and 
outcomes. I’m proud to have been a part of this and would be honored to serve again 
on the W-FL BOCES Board.  

  
PART III:   Additional Information  

My background is in Special Education. I taught Special Education at North Rose-Wolcott 
for 28 years. I’ve always enjoyed working with children and LOVE the learning process. I 
would be honored to serve on this Board and continue serving the needs and 
programming of the students and staff members of our BOCES and our 25 W-FL 
Component districts.  



Wayne-Finger Lakes Board of Cooperative Educational Services 

Candidate Information Form 
 

Name:  O.J. Sahler  School District: Canandaigua City School District (CCSD)  
  

PART I:  Board Experience 
Prior to my election to the  BOCES BOE, I was a member of the CCSD BOE for 21 years, retiring in 2007.  I was a 
member or chair of all CCSD standing committees and a Board liaison member to several major District-wide initiatives: 
the Middle School Task Force, when the District constructed the 6-8 Middle School, which was redesigned about 10 
years later to meet new demands; the Counseling Services Task Force, which recommended expanding services for 
students seeking specialized college/career counseling and more transition services for pupils between grades 5 & 6 and 
8 & 9; the  Wellness Committee, which aimed to consolidate our approach to a  Healthful Lifestyle; and the Audit 
Committee, which designed our internal audit function as part of the comptroller’s  plan for enhanced oversight of school 
district management. After retirement from CCSD, I was a community representative to the Audit Committee for 5 years. 
 

PART II:  Interest in BOCES Board Seat 
As a member of the BOCES Board for the past 27 years, I have gained a good understanding of the structure of BOCES 
services provided for life-long learning, and the challenge of functioning in a rapidly changing and uncertain social and 
economic environment.  I have also become aware of the need for enhanced communication among BOCES districts 
statewide to learn from each other and avoid duplication of effort.  I served as chair of a W-FL BOCES task force that 
was key to identifying functions that would benefit from increased advocacy by better informed BOCES Board members. 
I also co-chaired a workshop at the NYSSBA Annual meeting for 5 years to share the “Best of BOCES” throughout NY. I 
served on the Audit Committee during its formation, chaired the Superintendent and Board Evaluation Committee when 
it transitioned to a paperless format, and served on the Policy Committee when we reviewed our entire policy 
compendium, a process we have made an every-three-year process to keep W-FL policies relevant and timely, a task I 
continue to pursue as we streamline and standardize our policies regarding student and staff harassment and equal 
educational and employment opportunities.  I completed my service as president of the W-FL BOCES Board of 
Education 5 years ago. I currently serve as chair of the Finance/Audit Committee. I am also the W-FL BOCES 
representative to the Legislative Committee of the 4-County School Boards Association, working to make our collective 
voices heard in Albany and beyond. One of my most truly rewarding experiences at BOCES has been to serve as the 
board representative to the School-to-Career Task Force and the External Review Committee, which evaluates 
applications to the State for certification of our vocational/career training programs. This is a duty which I have gladly 
fulfilled for 20 years. This experience gives me the opportunity to examine in detail all the career and technical programs 
available through our BOCES, as well as new initiatives developed in response to local student/employer demand. Most 
recently, I have come to appreciate the tremendous amount of creative energy that our students have, as exemplified by 
the beautiful art work that pervades all the trades and career opportunities, from welding sculptures, to fancy auto body 
paint jobs, to creative waves and braids, to pretty-as-a-picture table settings and plate presentations. No one could have 
such experiences and not feel thoroughly passionate about the incredible resource that BOCES is, both as an 
educational institution and as an asset to the economic and creative growth of our region. It would be a privilege and an 
honor to continue my service to the W-FL BOCES over the next 3 years. 
 

PART III:   Additional Information 
I am a behavioral pediatrician practicing as a faculty member at the Golisano Children’s Hospital at the University of 
Rochester Medical Center. I treat children and teens with physical, psychological, and behavioral issues that can 
interfere with their potential to learn. My background has been useful to me and, hopefully, to the BOCES as well in 
considering ways to enhance the services it provides and the image it projects to the communities it serves. 

Please return this completed form to Cindy Murray, Board Clerk, cindy.murray@wflboces.org no later than Tuesday, April 4, 2024. 
It will be forwarded to component boards of education and placed on our website before our Annual Meeting. 

mailto:cindy.murray@wflboces.org

	Policies for 1st Reading
	2024-03-28 unofficial minutes
	Dated: March , 2024
	By Order of the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District
	First Publication: April 3, 2024, Second through Fourth Publication: Weeks of: April 14, April 28, and May 5, 2024.

	2024-2025 BOE Meeting calendar
	2024-25 Public Budget Document
	SBM-1 2022-23

	24-25 PROPERTY TAX REPORT CARD
	1) Bylaws  - Proposed Changes
	2024-2025 Election Ballot
	2024 Gay Candiate Info Form
	PART I:  Board Experience
	PART II:  Interest in BOCES Board Seat
	PART III:  Additional Information

	2024 Pendleton Candidate Info Form
	2024 Sahler Candidate Info Form
	PART I:  Board Experience
	PART II:  Interest in BOCES Board Seat
	PART III:   Additional Information

	2024-4.11 Sub List.pdf
	Teacher
	Service Sub List




